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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of GMR Highways Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of GMR Highways Limited (the
“Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. (Hereinafter referred to as “Ind AS
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 give the information
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31t
March, 2023, its losses, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matters in the notes to the accompanying Standalone IND AS
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023.

A. We draw the attention to Note no 36 of the accompanying financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2023, relating to the investment of Rs. 274.07 Crores (including loans of 77.53
Crores and investment in equity/ preference shares of Rs.196.54 Crores made by the company
in GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited (GACEPL) a subsidiary of the
company. Though GACEPL has been incurring losses, and the net worth is negative, based
on the management’s assessment and the legal opinion on the tenability of appeal before
Hon’ble Supreme Court, in respect of claim before NHAI, Government of Haryana and
Punjab for loss of revenue, such investment has been carried at cost. Our opinion in this regard
is not qualified.

B. We draw your attention to Note no.37 of the accompanying financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2023, regarding the carrying value of investment of Rs.650.37 crores in GMR
Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited (GHVEPL). Though the liabilities of
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GHVEPL exceeds the total assets of the company, and has been incurring losses since its
inception, based on the management’s valuation assessment and the legal opinion on the
compensation from proceedings initiated by the company against NHAI for loss of revenue,
before Delhi High Court, such investments have been carried at cost. Our opinion is this
regard is not qualified.

C. We draw your attention to Note no.37 of the accompanying financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2023, relating to uncertainty in the matter of restriction of concessionaire
period of GHVEPL by NHALI to 15 years as against the initially envisaged period of 25 years,
which the subsidiary is contesting before arbitration tribunal and based on independent legal
opinion is confident on getting relief. However, the financials of the subsidiary does not carry
any adjustments in the financial statements on account of the above. In line with the same
view, the company has not made any adjustments to the carrying of investments in the
financial statements of the Company.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the aforesaid matter.

Amalgamation of GTT and GTA pursuant to the Composite Scheme of Amalgamation amongst
GMR Tuni-Anakapalli Expressways Limited, GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited
(the “Transferor Companies”), GMR Highways Limited (the “Transferee Company”) and their
shareholders & creditors as sanctioned by Hon’ble NCLT, Mumbai vide its order dated 34 August,
2022

We did not audit the financial statements of erstwhile GMR Tuni Anakapalli Expressways Limited
and GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited (the Transferor Companies, which are
included in the financial statements pursuant to amalgamation with the Company (refer Schedule 19
Note 5) constituting total assets of Rs.746.12-Crores crore, net assets of Rs._360.08 Crores crore as at
March 31, 2022 and total revenue of Rs. 47.24 Crores for the year then ended. The financial statements
and other financial information of the Transferor Companies have been audited by other auditors
whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion on the financial statements to the extent
they have been derived from such financial statements is based solely on the report of such other
auditors.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
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issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rulesthereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the board report, but does not include the standalone Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The board report is expected to be made available
to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether such
other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone Ind AS financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibility of Management for Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financialstatements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performanceincluding other comprehensive income / loss, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordancewith accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS)specified under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguardingof the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenanceof adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
ofthe financial statements that give a true and fair view and are freefrom material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to

liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements,as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion.Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAswill always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are consideredmaterial if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions ofusers taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraudor error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures thatare appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operatingeffectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and relateddisclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on theaudit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may castsignificant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertaintyexists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financialstatements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
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conclusions are based on the auditevidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including thedisclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in amanner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing ofthe audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify duringour audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethicalrequirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that mayreasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
ourknowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of changes in equity dealt
with by this Reports are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone IND AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended,
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(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“ Annexure B” to this report

(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not paid any remuneration to its managerial personnel during the year and accordingly
reporting in accordance with the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act is not required;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

ii.

ii.

iv.

The company does not have any pending litigations other than as disclosed in Note
n0.33, which would impact its financial position.

The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

A. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity (ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

B. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the
company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries, and

C. Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
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believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material
misstatement.

v. During the year, the Company, neither declared nor paid any dividend. Hence
reporting on compliance with provisions of section 123 of the Act does not arise.

For GIRISH MURTHY&KUMAR
Chartered Accountants
Firm'’s registration number: 0009345

Digitally signed by

ACHYUTHAVENKA ACHYUTHAVENKATA SATISH
TA SATISH KUMAR E‘;t’::A;OZS.OA.ZQ 212147

+05'30"

A.V. SATISH KUMAR

Partner

Membership number: 026526
UDIN No: 23026526 BGXOAF1953
Place: Bangalore

Date: 29-04-2023
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” Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors” Report referred to in clause 1 of paragraph on the
‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date to the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023:

Re: GMR Highways Limited

I. Inrespect of the Company’s Tangible assets & Intangible assets:

i

ii.

1ii.

iv.

The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, plant & equipment and there are no intangible assets held
by the company during the year.

The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of Property, plant &
equipmentin a phased manner over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to
the program, the Company has carried out physical verification during the earlier year and
no major discrepancies have been noticed during such verification.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds
of all the immovable properties (including investment properties) held by the Company
(other than properties where the Company is a lessee) disclosed in the financial statements
are held in the name of the Company.

There is no revaluation done by the company of its property, plant and equipment (including
the right of use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

There are no proceedings that have been initiated or are pending against the company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

II.  Inrespect of details of Company’s Inventory & Working capital:

i

The nature of company’s operation does not warrant holding of any stocks. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(ii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

The company, during any point of time of the year, has not been sanctioned working capital
limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets.

II. a. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has made investment in
or provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured
or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties as mentioned in
notes to accounts note number 6, 7 and 8. The details of the same are given below:
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Rs. In Crores

Particulars Guarantees | Security | Loans Advances in nature of
loans

Aggregate amount given 52.18

during the year

Balance outstanding as at 55.50 624.60

balance sheet date

Note : Loan outstanding as at balance sheet date not include Equity Component of Loan
given.

b. The investments made, guarantees provided, security given and terms and conditions of
the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are
not, prima facie, prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

c. In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, the
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the
repayments/receipts of principal and interest are regular wherever applicable.

d. According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no amount which is
overdue for more than 90 days in respect of loans or advances in the nature of loans
granted to such companies, firms, LLPs or other parties.

e. The Company has granted loan(s) or advance(s) in the nature of loan(s) which had fallen
due during the year and such loans or advances in the nature of loans were
renewed/extended during the year. The details of the same has been given below:

Name of the Borrower Aggregate Percentage to
amount of the total loans
existing loans granted

renewed - INRin | during the
crores year(Including
the renewed
loans-%
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Namitha Real Estate Pvt Ltd 1.00 0.39%

GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Pvt Ltd 98.34 38.63%
11.05 4.34%

GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited (EPC)

GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expressways P 4.01 1.58%

Ltd

GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways 87.99 34.56%

Pvt Ltd

f. During the year, the Company has not granted loans, which are repayable on demand.
g. There are no loans wherein the terms or period of repayment were not specified .

IV. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us the company
has not granted any loan, made any investments, gave any guarantee or provided security
in connection with a loan to any other body corporate or person in contravention of section
185 and 186 of the Companies Act,2013.

V. According to the information and explanation given to us the Company has not accepted
any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public within the
meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not
applicable.

VI. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company, pursuant to the Rules
made by the Central Government of India, the maintenance of cost records as prescribed under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Act and we are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts
and records have been maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records
with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

VII. In respect of Deposit of Statutory liabilities:

a. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and
services tax, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate
authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.
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b. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory
dues referred to in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

VIII. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company
examined by us we have not come across any instances of any transactions which are not
recorded in the accounts that have been disclosed or surrendered before the tax authorities
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the income tax act, 1961.

IX.

a. Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the
management, we are of the opinion that, the company has not delayed in the repayment of
loans taken from lender & interest thereof during the year, except that interest payable to
Bankers of Rs.43.20 crores has been delayed by a period ranging from 26 to 87 days, and
principal payable to lenders of Rs.47.20 crores of repayment has been delayed by a period
ranging from 9 to 88 days.

The company has not taken any loan from Government and the company has not issued
any debentures.

The company is not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
any other lender.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money is
not raised by way of term loans during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on
an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the
Company on short term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on an
overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
its subsidiaries, associates.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries,
joint ventures or associate companies.

a. According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
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of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

However, during the year, the company has issued shares to GGAL on effect of GTT
and GTA merger into GHWL as per the NCLT Order. Please refer note no. 14 for
share capital issued.

XI. a. During the course of examination of the books and records of the company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have not come across any instance of fraud by
the company or on the company by its officers or employees of the company during the
year. Further there were no whistle blower complaints received during the year.

b. No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government
for the period covered by our audit.

XII.  In our opinion and according to the information and Explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of the order is not
applicable.

XII.  According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

XIV. The company has an adequate internal audit system to commensurate with the size and
nature of its business and the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit
were considered.

XV.  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, we are of the opinion that that the Company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable.

XVI.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

XVIL. The company has incurred any cash losses of Rs. 206.86 Crs in the financial year and of
Rs. 131.35 Cr in the immediately preceding financial year.

XVIIIL. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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XIX. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the

financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of

financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial statements,

our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management, we are of the opinion

that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is capable

of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within

a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an

assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is

based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor

any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance

sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

XX.

a. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not
fulfill the criteria as specified under section 135(1) of the Act read with the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and accordingly,
reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b. The company does not have any unspent amount with respect to the obligations
under Corporate Social Responsibility. Therefore, the company is not liable to
transfer any amount neither to the Fund specified under Schedule VII to the
Companies Act, 2013 nor to the Special Account according to the provisions of
Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013.

XXI.  The reporting under clause (xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect

of said clause under this report.

For GIRISH MURTHY &KUMAR
Chartered Accountants

Firm'’s registration number: 000934S
ACHYUTHAVE Digitally signed by

ACHYUTHAVENKATA

NKATA SATISH SsATISH KUMAR

Date: 2023.04.29

KUMAR 21:22:34 +05'30"
A.V.SATISH KUMAR
Partner

Membership number: 026526
UDIN No: 23026526BGXOAF1953

Place: Bangalore
Date: 29-04-2023
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Annexure B to Auditors’ Report of even date

Report on the Internal Controls on Financial Controls under clause (i) of sub-section (3) of

section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GMR Highways
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone

financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls overFinancial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of

reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
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that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was

established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorization of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or

disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For GIRISH MURTHY &KUMAR
Chartered Accountants
Firm'’s registration number: 000934S

ACHYUTHAVE JENSED
NKATA SATISH SATISH KUMAR

Date: 2023.04.29
KUMAR 21:23:06 +05'30'

A.V. SATISH KUMAR

Partner

Membership number: 026526
UDIN No: 23026526 BGXOAF1953
Place: Bangalore

Date: 29-04-2023
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

Rupees in Lacs

Note As At As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
Non Current Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 5.97 8.66
(b) Investment property 5 1,605.74 1,610.40
(c) Other Intangible assets 4 0.00
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 6 140,828.50 92,569.26
(ii) Loans 7 (1) 52,091.47 64,949.99
(iii) Other Financial Assets 8 (i) 26,966.52 35,582.09
(e) Non Current Tax Assets (Net) 11 789.95 1,044.86
(f) Other Non Current Assets 13 (i) 134.43 87.80
Total Non-Current Assets 222,422.58 195,853.06
Current Assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Current Investments 6 (i) - -
(i) Loans 7 (ii) 10,368.65 36,931.44
(iii) Trade Receivables 9 2,126.88 2,820.84
(iv) Cash & Cash Equivalents 10 (i) 30,133.79 83.88
(v) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalenty 10 (ii) 1.71 1.63
(vi) Other Financial Assets 8 (ii) 14,287.81 22,717.29
(b) Other Current Assets 13 {ii) 443.94 803.22
Total Current Assets 57,362.78 63,358.30
TOTAL ASSETS 279,785.36 259,211.36
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 14 84,333.47 77,544.05
(b) Equity share capital pending issuance - 6,789.42
(c) Other Equity 15 48,436.94 61,431.28
Total Equity 132,770.41 145,764.75
Liabilities
Non-Current Liablities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 96,673.45 73,559.82
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 19 (i) 36.18 20.33
(b) Provisions 20 (i) < 5
(c) Deferred Tax Liablities (Net) 12 - S
Total Non-Current Liablities 96,709.63 73,580.15
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

Rupees in Lacs

Note As At As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 30,160.44 21,279.10
(i) Trade payables
(a)Total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises
. 17 A 2,677.51 1,888.06
and small enterprises
(b)Total OQutstanding dues ot creditors other than
. . ) : 17B 3,598.09 4,558.96
micro enterprises and small enterprise
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 19 (ii) 6,428.37 3,341.83
(b) Provisions 20 (ii) 1,603.53 713.76
(c) Other current liabilities 21 5,837.38 3,084.75
Total Current Liabilities 50,305.32 39,866.46
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 279,785.36 259,211.36
Notes forming part of the financial statements 1-52
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1:80.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our Report of even date
For Girish Murthy & Kumar
Firm registration number: 09345
Chartered Accountants i

/l v Q O A\

Pz,
n Hight Point IV
. v3145. Palace Roail, *
A.V. Satish Kumar 1.\ Bangalore 1
Partner P ;’,
Membership no.: 26526 M‘D ﬁﬂ@“”

Place: New Delhi
Date: 29th April 2023

For and on behalf of

GMR Highways Limited
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O Bangaru Raju
Managing Director
DIN:00082228
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GMR Highways Limited

CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171

Statement of Profit & Loss for the Year Ended March 31, 2023

Rupeesin Lacs

Note Year ended Year ended
L March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Income
Revenue from Operation 22 11,493.89 7,753.84
Other Income 23 11,965.66 13,361.32
Total Income 23,459.55 21,115.16
Expenses
Sub contracting expenses 24 3,758.16 72328
Operation & maintenance expenses 24 7,341.52 5,449.90
Employee benefits expense 25 61.49 86.04
Finance costs 26 15,282.38 13,634 .44
Depreciation and amortization expense 27 2.69 2.03
Other expenses 28 173.51 284.75
Total Expenses 26,619.75 21,180.44
Profit / (Loss) for the year before exceptional items and taxation (3,160.20) (65.28)
Exceptional ltem - 44 (10,083.67) (5,659.33)
Profit / (Loss) for the year before taxation (13,243.87) (5,724.61)

Tax Expense:
(1) Current Tax i )

(2) Tax adjustments of prior years (251.74) (294.05)
(3) Deferred Tax

{251.74) {294.05)

Profit / (Loss) for the year after tax (12,992.13) (5,430.56)
Other Comprehensive Income
Re-measurement (loss)/ gains on defined benefit plans (2.21) 20.18
(2.21) 20.18
Total comprehensive Income for the year (12,994.34) (5,410.38)
-Owners of the Company (12,994.34) (5,410.38)
(12,994.34) (5,410.38)
Earning per Equity Share:
- Basic & Diluted 29 (1.54) (0.64)
Notes forming part of the financial statements 1-52
Summoary of Significant Accounting Policies 1&2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our Report of even date
For Girish Murthy & Kumar For and on behalf of
Firm registration number: 09345 GMR Ajghways Limited o
\ \
Chartered Accountants I ; % )
RIS ' @bﬁ“ .
0.1 3R =
et N = Ve 4503, - S s
Hi int v
A.V. Satish Kumar 45 E:;::;‘F‘t ”"d 0O Bangaru Raju BV N Rao
ice Ro
Partner S B.mgﬂorc\j o Managing Director Director
Membership no.: 26526\ == PO DIN:00082228 DIN:0Q051167
\\,\:,)’\I‘.. ‘_____,r\,.\\_
S ACLOY ) A \
e Qe
Vikas Bansal Paramjeet Singh
Place: New Delhi Chief Financial Officer ~ Company Secretary

Date: 29th April 2023




GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171

Statement of Change in Equity for the Year Ended March 31, 2023

A. Equity Share Capital

Rupees in Lacs

Share capital
Rs.

As at March 31, 2021

Changes in Equity Share Ca_pital
due to prior period errars

77,544.05

Restated balance at April 01, 2021

77,544.05

Share Capital Issued during the
year

|Capital Redution during the Year

As at March 31, 2022

Changes in Equily Share Capital
due to prior period errors

77,544.05

Restated balance at April 01, 2022

77,544.05

Share Capital Issued during the
year

6,789.42

Capital Redution during the Year

As at March 31, 2023

84,333.47

B. Equity share capital pending issuance

Amount in Rs.

Share capital
Rs.

As at March 31, 2021

6,789.42

As at March 31, 2022

6,789.42

Cancelled during the year*

(6,789.42)

As at March 31, 2023

*Shares issued/cancelled pursuant t

B. Other Equity

o the scheme of arrangement

Rupees in Lacs

Equity component of financial instrument Retained Earning Re-measurement Total
(loss)/ gains on
Preference shares | Related Party Loans defined benefit
plans
As at March 31, 2021 16,968.23 19,179.49 30,641.37 52.56 66,841.65
Changes in accounting policy or - - -
prior period errors
Restated balance as at April 01, 16,968.23 19,179.49 30,641.37 52.56 66,841.65
2021 o )
Net Profit / (Loss) & (5,430.56) - (5,430.56)
Actuarial {gain)/loss in respect of
defined benefit plan ° ) ) 2018 40:18
As at March 31, 2022 16,568.23 19,179.49 25,210.82 72.74 61,431.28
Changes in accounting policy or - - -
prior period errors
Restated balance as at 16,968.23 19,179.49 25,210.82 72.74 61,431.28
April 01, 2022
Net Profit o & {12,992.13) - (12,992.13)
Actuarial (gain)/loss in respect of
defined benefit plan - - - (2.21) (221)
As at March 31, 2023 16,968.23 19,i?9.49 12,218.69 70.53 48,436.94

The accompanying notes are an inte

As per our Report of even date
For Girish Murthy & Kumar
Firm registration number: 09345

v
Chajtered Accountants _/',-‘P~"
('} /1?."
' Y . S
A.V. Satish Kumar (*, 1.
Partner ;
b}
Membership no.: 26526 LS
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Place: New Delhi
Date: 29th April 2023
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended March 31, 2023

Rupees in Lacs

Particulars

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES;
Profit / (Loss) for the year
Adjustments For :
Depreciation and Amortisation
Finance Charges
Loss / (Gain) on disposal of assets (net)
Exceptional items
Interest Income on Financial Assets
Interest Income on Bank deposit and others
Provisions/Liability no longer required written back
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans
Profit on sale of Investment

Adjustments for Movement in Working Capital:
Decrease / (Increase) in Financial Assets and other non Current Assets
Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories, Financial Assets and other Current Assets
Decrease / (Increase) in Trade Receivables
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Finance Liablities
Increase / (Decrease) in Provision
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Liablities and Retention Money
Cash From/(Used In) Operating activities
Tax [Paid)/Refund
Net Cash From/{Used In) Operating activities

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
(Addition) / Deletion to Fixed Assets
Interest Income on Bank deposit and others
Decrease/(Increase) in Loan to related parties
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Bank Balance
Profit on Sale of Investment
Cash From/(Used In) Investing Activities

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Increase/(Decrease) in Loan from external parties
Increase/(Decrease) in Loan from Group Companies (Net)
Interest paid on Loan
Other Finance Charges Paid
Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings

Cash From/(Used In) Financing Activities

Net Increase /Decrese in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at beginning of the year
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at end of the year

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(13,243.87) (5,724.01})
2.69 2.03
15,282.38 13,634.44
(50.16) -
10,083.67 5,6509.33
(7,905.93) (7,913.81)
(3,820.58) (5,182.97)
(168.34) (253.86)
(2.21) 20.18
(0.26)
177.38 240.73
{8,040.24) (5,771.08)
359.28 2,684.77
693.96 386.72
(171.41) (3,034.25)
(621.40) (254.33)
1,058.11 839.89
2,752.62 520.57
(3,791.69) (4,367.96)
506.65 429.88
(3,285.04) (3,938.07)
54.82 (8.17)
1,801.94 2,918.53
16,041.62 29,249.80
(0.08) 777.92
0.26 -
17,898.57 32,938.15
(9,874.24) (5,536.12)
40,860.66 (12,060.71)
(15,543.39) (10,833.50)
[6.64) (6.85)
- (685.64)
15,436.37 {29,122.80)
30,049.51 (122.73)
83.88 206.61
30,133.79 83.88
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended March 31, 2023
Rupees in Lacs
Components of Cash and Cash Equivelants as at: March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Balances with the scheduled banks:

In Current accounts 133.79 83.88
- Deposits with less than three months maturity 30,000.00
30,133.79 83.88

As per our Report of even date

For Girish Murthy & Kumar For and on behalf ot
Firm registration number: 09345 GMR Highways Limited
Chartered Accountants /
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Chief Financial Office  Company Secretary
Place: New Delhi

Date: 28th April 2023




GMR Highways Limited
(CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

24

22

a)

Corporate information

GMR Highways Limited (GHWL) is engaged in business of Highways Maintenance which includes Routine / Regular
Maintenance and Periodical / Major Maintenance work. GHWL also provide highways and toll management services to
SPVs..

The Company is public limited company incorporated and domiciled in Indis and has its registered office at Mumbai,
Maharashtra.

The Company's Holding Company is GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited post demerger of transportation division by GMR
Airports Infrastructure Limited (formerly GMR Infrastructure Limited) vide NCLT Order w.e.f 31.12.2021 while ultimate
Holding Company is GMR Enterprises Private Limited.

Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies applied by the company in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below.
Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these financial statements, unless
otherwise indicated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), under the historical cost
convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions
of Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) (Lo the extent notified). The Ind AS are prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or
a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements are presented in Rupees in Lacs

Summary of significant accounting policies

Current versus non-current classification

Assets and Liabilities in the balance sheet have becn classified as either current or nan-current based upon the
requirements of Schedule Ill notified under the Companies Act, 2013,

An asset has been classified as current if

(a) it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Campany’s normal operating cycle; or

{b) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or

() it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or

(d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting date. All other assets have been classified as non—current.

A liability has been classified as current when

(a) itis expected to be settled in the Company's normal vperating cycle; or

[b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; or

[c) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

(d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting date. All other liabilities have been classified as non—current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
Advance tax paid is classified as non-current assets.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The company's has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.
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GMR Highways Limited
{CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

b)  Foreign currency and derivative transactions
The Company's tinancial statements are presented in INR, which is company’s functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the respective transactions
between the functional currency and the foreign currency.

Manetary foreign currency assets and liabilities remaining unsettled at the Balance Sheet date are translated at the rates
of exchange prevailing on that date. Gains / losses arising on account of realisation / settlement of foreign currency
transactions and on translation of foreign currency assets and liabilities are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting ‘s monetary items at rates different from
those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial stalements, are recognized as
income or 3s expenses in the year in which they arise.

Non- monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non—monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar
valuation denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were
determined.

The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in OCl or profit or loss are also recognised in OCl or profit or loss, respectively).

(a) Any gains or losses arising due to differences in exchange rates ot the time of translation or settlement are accounted
for in the Statement of Profit & Loss either under the head foreign exchange fluctuation or interest cost, as the case may
be, except those relating Lo long-term foreign currency monetary items.

(b) Exchange differences pertaining to long term foreign currency loans obtained or re-financed on or before 31 March
2016:

Exchange differences on long term foreign currency monetary items relating to acquisition of depreciable assets are
adjusted to the carrying cost of the assets and depreciated over the balance life of the assets . In other cases, exchange
differences are accumulated in a "Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account” and amartized over
the balance period of such long-term foreign currency monetary item by recognition as income or expense in each of such
periods.

Exchange differences pertaining to long term foreign currency loans obtained or re-financed on or after 1 April 2016:
The exchange differences pertaining to long term foreign currency working capital loans obtained or re-financed on or
after 1 April 2016 is charged off or credited to profit & loss account under Ind AS.

c)  Fair value measurement
The Company's measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company’s
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Company's uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unabservable
inputs.

a2 N5
% Hight Paint IV
c; 45, Palace Road, &)
2T 2 [
7 Bangalore-1 {.\-’
&

5,
o T
GIPES




GMR Highways Limited
(CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly
or indirectly chservable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For assels and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company's determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers when it satisfies a performance obligation by

transferring promised good or service to a customer. The revenue is recognised to the extent of transaction price allocated
to the performance obligation satisfied. Performance obligation is satisfied over time when the

transfer of control of asset (good or service) to a customer is done over time and in other cases, performance

obligation is satisfied at a point in time. For performance obligatfon satisfied over time, the revenue recognition is done by
measuring the progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation. The progress is measured in terms of a
proportion of actual cost incurred to-date, to the total estimated cost attributable to the performance obligation.

Transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects Lo be entitled in exchange for
transferring good or service to a customer excluding amounts collected on behalf of a third party. Variable
consideration is estimated using the expected value method or most likely amount as appropriate in a given
circumstance. Payment terms agreed with a customer are as per business practice and there is no financing
component involved in the transaction price.

Interest Income: For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not
consider the expecled credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment.
Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction
projects if the recognition criteria are met.

Recognition:

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if:
(a) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
(b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the
cartying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the
respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. Refer to note xx and xx regarding significant accounting
judgements, estimates and assumptions and provisions for further information about the recorded decommissioning
provision.
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GMR Highways Limited
[CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

Gains or losses arising from de—recognition of property, plant and equipment assets are measured as the difference
between the net disposable proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

Further, When each major inspection is petformed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property,
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.
Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of the previous inspection (as distinct from physical parts) is derecognised.

Machinery spares which are specific to a particular item of property, plant and equipment and whose use is expected to be
irregular are capitalized as property, plant and equipment.

Spare parts are capitalized when they meet the definition ot PPE, i.e., when the company intends to use these during more
than a period of 12 months.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line method, up to the cost of the asset (net of
residual value, in accordance with the useful lives prescribed under Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013 which are as

below:

- Plant and equipments 4-15 years
- Office equipments 5 years

- Furniture and fixtures 10 years

- Vehicles 8-10 years
- Computers 3 years

Depreciation on additions is being provided on a pro-rata basis from the date of such additions. Similarly, depreciation on
assets sold/disposed off during the year is being provided up to the dates on which such assets are sold/disposed off.
Madification or extension to an existing asset, which is of capital nature and which becomes an integral part thereof is
depreciated prospectively over the remaining useful life ofthat asset.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

f) Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in
an amalgamation in the nature of purchase is their fair value as at the date of amalgamation. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amaortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The useful lives of intangible assets arc assessed as either finite or indefinite

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to
madify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recopnised in the statement of profit and loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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GMR Highways Limited
[CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

h)  Taxes
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax,

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected Lo be paid to the tax authorities in accardance with the Income
Tax Act, 1961

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expecled to be recovered from ar paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rutes and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income Lax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCl or directly in equily. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assels are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tox relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss {either in other
comprehensive income or in equity).

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offsct if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same Laxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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GMR Highways Limited
(CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

i) Borrowing costs
Borrawing Cost includes interest and amortization of anciliary costs incurred in connoction with the arrangement of
borrowings. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition. construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the
respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

i) Inventories
Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value on First In First Out
basis.
Net reatizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

k) Lease
Finance Leases:
Where the Company is the lessee
Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the company substantially all the risks and brenefits incidental to ownership of
the leased item, are capitalized at the inception of the lease term at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and
present value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and roeduction of
the lease liabilily so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
recognized as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.- Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial
direct costs of lease are capitalized.d on an accrual basis as per the terms of agreements entered into with lessees.
A leased asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the company will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term, the capitalized asset is depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Operating Leases:

Where the Company is the lessee

Lease rentals are recognized as an expenses on a straight line basis with reference to lease terms and other considerations
except where

(i) Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the benefit derived from the asset taken or given
on lease.; or

{ii) The payments to the lessor are structured Lo increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the
lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases

Lands obtained on leases, where there is no reasonable certainity that the Company will oblain ownershp by the end of

the lease term shall generally be classified as finance leases. The minimum lease pyayments include upfront premium paid
plus any annual recurring lease rental which is amortized over the lease term.
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GMR Highways Limited
(CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
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Impairment

The Company assesses at cach reporling date whether there 15 an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an assel is required, the company estimates the asset's
recoverdble amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s orcashgenerating units’ (CGUs) net selling
price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the assel is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash tlows are discounted to their present value using a pre—tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately
far each of the company's cash generating units Lo which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except for previously
revalued property, plant and equipment, where the revaluation was taken to revaluation reserve. In this case, the
impairment is also recognized in the revaluation reserve up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment
losses may no ionger exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the company estimates the asset’s or CGU's
recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the assets recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversai
is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at a revaiued amount,
in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets And Capital Commitments

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible abligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non—occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in
the financial statements. Contingent assets are only only disclosed when it is proable that the ecanomic benefits will flow
to the entity.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company's has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company's expects some or all of a provision to
be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and
loss net of any reimbursement.
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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GMR Highways Limited
(CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
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n)  Retirement and other Employee Benefits
Short term employee benefits and defined contribution plans.
All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term
employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc.,are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the
period in which the employee renders the related service.
Rutirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other
than the contribution payable to the provident fund.
The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as expenditure, when an employee renders
the related service. I the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the reparting date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution
already paid. if the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due forsservices received before the balance sheet
date, then excess is recognized as an assct to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example. a reduction in
future payment or a cash refund.
Compensated absences
Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short—term employee
benefit. The company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.
The company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long—term employee
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long—term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year—end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance
sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.
Where compuny has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months,
the same is presented as non—current liability.
Defined benefit plans
Gratuity
Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the scheme is determined on the basis of
actuarial valuation under projected unit credit (PUC) method.
The company recognizes termination benefit as a liability and an expense when the company has a present obligation as a
result of past event, it is probable that an outflow . of resources embodying economic benefits witl be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the termination benefits fall due
more than 12 menths after the balance sheet date, they are measured at present value of future cash flows using the
discount rate delermined by reference to market “ yields at the balance sheet date on government bonds.
Remeasurements
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.
Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
P The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
P The dute that the Group recognises related restructuring costs
Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
o)  Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of ancther entity.
Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
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GMR Highways Limited
(CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
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Subseguent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are only classified as Debt instruments at amortised cost

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A 'debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,

and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest [SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This categary generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Derecognition

A finoncial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company's of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the balance sheet) when:

P The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

P The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the
company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the company's continuing involvement. In that case,
the company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be required to
repay.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on the following financial assets and cradit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits,
trade receivables and bank balance
b) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL
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GMR Highways Limited
[CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables that do not
conlain a signiticant tinancing component.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at cach reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly,
12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL s used.
If, in a subsequent periad, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month
ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted ot the original EIR. When estimating
the cash flows, an entily is required to consider:

» All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the
expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot
be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

P Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms
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GMR Highways Limited
(CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the
statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet
presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

P-Financial assets measured as at amorlised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meels
write-off criteria, the company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through prolit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All tinancial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings etc.

Subsequent measurement

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings and security deposits recieved,

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

p)  Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprises cash at bank and in hand and short term investments with
an original maturity periods of three months or less.

g) Earning per share
Basic Earnings Per Share is caiculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equily shareholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
For the purpose of calculating Diluted Earnings Per Share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
; E‘ii:}_l‘l“'z\qq,qﬁltrem\\'ai equity shares.
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GMR Highways timited
CIN: Ua5203MH2006P1C287171
_Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

Rupees in lacs

Investment property

Amount

land

As At April 01, 2021
Aeliditann

ispinals

As At March 31, 2022
Adiitions

Dispasals

As At March 31, 2023

1.610.40

1,610.40

(4.66)
1,605.74

Mote:- 1) Company is having onginal tital dewds in its name. Investment property reprasents in Lani

d as follows:-

As At As At
= e ST | March31,2023 | March 31,2022 |
sath Ruad, Dist - Amibiala (58628 83 Sq Mtr) 1.605.74] 1,605.74
| _[Sitoatey ot Mouje Dudhar, Dist - Mihiana (1853.02 3q it o .|
Situated at Mouje Dudhai, Dist Mahsana (1885.85 Sg Mtr) - 2.29
1,605.74 1,610.40

cen offered as s_erzl_u-i;\,r-;nth the Registry
NHALin G1T case

of the Court for gettin

g claim award from

Rupees in lacs

Breakup of Investment in Equities at Cost

6 Non currenti T T fam Pt
rentinv ments

estme March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Investment in Equities Shares 20,437.81 20,437.81

Equity part of Investment in Preference Shares 46,914.05 32,334.01
Equity part of Investment in CCDs 36,060.00 -

Equity portion of related party loans 37,337.25 39,718.05

Investmentin financial guarantses 79.39 79.39

140,828.50 92,569.26

As At As At

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

(a) Investment in subsidiaries

(1) 13,59,30,000 (March 31, 2022 13,59,30,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 Each in 13,583.00 13,593.00
GMR Pachanpall Fxprassways Limited
(i1} 5.07,42,720 (March 31, 2022: 5,07,42,720) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 Fach in GMR 5,074.27 5,074.27
Ambala Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited
(i) 24,50,000 (March 31, 2022: 24,50,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 =ach in GMR 245.00 245.00
Hyderabad Vijayawada bxpressways Private Limited
(iv] 1,47,00,000 (March 31, 2022 1,47,00,000) Equily Shares of Rs. 10 each in GMR 1,470.00 1,470.00
Chennai Outer Ring Roard Private Limited
(b) Other Investment - Equity
(i} 5,55,370 (March 31, 2022: 5,55,370) Equity 3hares of Rs. 10 each in Indian 55.54 55.54
Highways Management Company [td.
Total Investment in Equity 20,437.81 20,437.81
Less: - Impairment in Investment of Shares
Impairment in Investment - -
Net Total Investment in Equity 20,437.81 20,437.81
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: UA5203MH2006PLC287171
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

s at] T asat

6 (i) Currentinvestments March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Investimentin Quoted mutual funds

lacs
As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

7 Loans (Unsecured, considered good)

(i) Non Current
(a) Loans and advance to related parties

Luan to body corporate 1,432.00 4,153.13
Loan tu related party 47,658.47 60,796.86
52,091.47 64,949.99
(i) Current T
Loan Recevables considered good - UnSecured
(a) Loans to related parties 10,368.65 36,931.44

\» 10,368.65 36,931.44
Loan to related parties / others considered good include :

I (i) Non Current Rupees in Lacs
|GHVEPL ' 35,247.20 31,8453 |
|GCORR i ) - 3,235.31
‘GI\CH‘L 12,176.38 5432.66
[GILSIL IV 63.00 300.00 |
Namitha Real Estates Private Limited 172.89 100.00 !
UEPL (Others) 4,432.00 4,153.13 |
|GMR Krishnagiri SIR Limited N : 18,258.18
‘GMR SEZ AND PORT HOLDING LIMITED < 1,625.39
| ) ) 52,091.47 64,949.99

{ {ii) Current . }
|GPUIL Corporate - 11,030.13
[GPUIL EPC | 1,515.65 1,104.81
GIL-SIL IV | 50.00 =

GACEPL. | A 6,163.38
GMR SFZ AND PORT HOLDING LIMITED 1 = 9,834.02
EGHVEPL | 8,799.00 8,799.00
| | 10,368.65 36,931.44

Loans at concessional rate of Interest to Group companies are separated into assets and equity compaonents based on the terms of the contract. On
receipt of the loan, the fair value of the assets component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent instrument. This amount is classified as a
tinancial assets measured at amartised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is extinguished. The remainder of the procesds is recognised and included in
retained earning.
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GMR Highways limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Notes forming part of Financial Statements prtt\_njfL:nr_opqu M:lrr.f] 31,2023

L As At As At
£, Differkinaacial Assets March 31,2023|  March 31, 2022
(i) Non Current
Security Depost - -
Interest accrued on Inter corporate lnans and deposits 3.582.41
Financial Asset of Invest. in preference shares issued by relatad parties 23.384.11 35.582.09
2696652 35,582.08
(i) Current [
Security Deposit 27.83 127.42
Non trade roceivable- related party 10,153.69 3,913.78
Non trade receivabla considared good 18,696.23 18,696.23
Receivable Other than trade - considered good 8.67 8.63
Unbilled revenue - related party 2,625.53 772.37
Interest accrued on fixed depasit 23.03 0.02
Interest accrued others 991.61 326.80
Interest accrued on Inter corporate loans and Jdepuosits L 433.55 6,960.79
32,9604 31,306.04
Less- Provision for doubtful non trade receivable (18,672.43) (8,588.75)
14,287.81 22,717.29

The Company had subscribed 1,45,00,040 8% redeemable non-cumulative nan-convertible preference shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid up in GMR Ambala
Chandigarh Expressway Private Limited. Praference Shares are redeemable at par on May 1,2022. Howaver the company resetves the right to all for buy-

out of the Preference shares by the promaters of the issure Company ar redemption of the preference shares by the issuer company at any time after the
expiry of 6 months from the date of allotment by giving one month notice.

As these Preference share are non cumulative and the issuer Company is not under obligation to pay dividend, only fair value of redemption value has
been considered as financial assets using a market rate for an equivalent instrument. This amount is classified as a Investment measured at amortised cost
(net of transaction costs) until it is extinguished on redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is recognised and included in Equity Investment.

In April 2022, the terms associated with the existing preference shares has change to make them Compulsorily Convertible into equity shares at ration of
1:10 an or befors August 31, 2027

Rupeesin lacs
As At As At
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

9 Trade Receivables

Unsecured, considered good
Trade Reccivahles considered good - UnSecured 2,126.88 2,820.34

2,126.88 2,820.84

Trade receivables Ageing Schedule

As at 31 March 2023

o o B Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 6 6 months — 2-3 More than 3
Current but not due |Months 1year 1-2 years |years years
Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good - 1,361.02 318.20 447 .66 - - 2,126.88
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
Undisputed Trade receivable - creditimpaired - = 5 - i % o
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk - - = " s - -
Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - - - <
Total - 1,361.02 318.20 447.66 - - 2,126.88
As at 31 March 2022
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than & 6 months — 2-3 More than 3
Current but not due |[Months 1year 1-2 years |years years

Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good - 1,055.17 1,765.67 - - - 2,820.84
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in eredit nisk - - - - - - -
Undisputed Trade receivable — credit impaired - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - - = - -
Disputed Trade receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - E: 5 i
Total = 1,055.17 1,765.67 = 2 a 2,820.84

(i) No trade receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company sither severally or jointly with any other person.
ji) Treda tdde Bls§ are non-interest bearing.
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31,2023

10 Cash and cash equivalents

As At
March 31, 2023

As At
March 31, 2022

(i} Balances with banks

Breakup of financial assets

March 31, 2023

- In Current Account 133.79 83.58
Deposits wath les, than three manths matunity 30,000.00
{ii) Bank balances othar than cash and cash cquivalents
- Margin money” 171 1.63
30,135.50 8551
) Rupees in lacs
- T As At As At

March 31, 2022

At Cost

12 Deferred Tax Assets/(Liablity)

Ma rch 31, 2023

Investment in Equitizs 20,437.81 20,437.81
At amortised cost
Equity portion of Investment in Preference Shares 46,914.05 32,334.01
Equity portion of related party luans 37,337.25 39,718.05
Investment in financial guarantees 79.39 70.39
Financial Asset of Invest in preference shares issued by related parties 23,334.11 35,582.09
Loans to Related partics 62,460.12 101,881.43
Cash & Cash Equivalent 30,135.50 8551
Trade Receivables 2,126 88 2,820 84
Other Financial Assets 17.870.22 22,717.29
Total 240,745.34 255,656.43
Rupees in Lacs
11 1 Tax-Non C t As At As At
e March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Advance income tax [net of provision for current tax) 789.95 1,044.86
789.95 1,044.86
Rupees in lacs
As At As At

March 31, 2022

Deferred Tax Assets
Total

Deferred Tax liablities
Total

Net Deferred Tax Assets/(Liablities)

1

w

Other Current/Non Current Assets

As At
March 31, 2023

7;\5 At
March 31, 2022

{i) Other Non Current Assets [Considered Good)
Prepaid Expenses pertains to Gratuity

{ii) Other Current Assets (Considered Good)
Prepaid Expenses
Advances recoverable in cash or kind
Balance with government authorities

134.43 87.80
134.43 87.80
114 0.45
61.57 337.38
3381.23 465.39
803.22

443.94
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

14 Share capital

| Tauthorised
(i) 234,20,00.000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
(March 31, 2022: 234,20,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each)

(i) 17,96,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each
(March 31, 2022: 17,96,00,000 preference shares of Rs. 100 each)

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-Up
843,334,710 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
{March 32, 2022: 775,440,510 equity shares of Rs. 10 each)

(

Equity share pending issuace

i

Equity share capital pending issuance

As At
) March 31, 2023

234,200.00
179.600.00

~ 413,800.00 |

#4,333.47

84,333.47

zosn RUPEESINLACS,

As At
Ma;th 31, 1_2(]2_2_ .

234.200.00

179,600.00

77.544.05

6,789.42

413,800.00

77,544.05

NOTES :

(i} Terms to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value ot Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity is entitled to one vate per
share, The Company declares and pay dividend in indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of director is subject to the approval

of the shareholder in ensuing Annual General meeting.

In event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all prefrential amopunts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Pursuant to Composite Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement as sanctioned by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Bench at
Mumbai vide its order dated August 03, 2022, the authorised share capital altered from Rs. 395000.00 lacs (divided into 23400 lacs [quity
Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each and 1610 lacs Preference Shares of face value of Rs. 100/- each) to Rs. 413800.00 lacs {divided into
23420 lacs Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each and 1796 lacs Preference Shares of face value of Rs. 100/~ each) on the date scheme

become effective from 11.08.2022 with the Appointed Date i.e April 01, 2014

(ii)

Reconcilation of the Equity shares outstanding at beginning and at end of the period

March 31, 2023

As At
March 31, 2022

Number Rupees in Lacs Number Rupees in Lacs
Equity Shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 775,440,510 77.544.05 775,140,510 77,544.05
Shares Issued during the year 67,804,200 5,789.42 4 5
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 843,334,710 84,333.47 775,440,510 77,544.05

Share Capital Issued

Pursuant to the sanctioned Composite Scheme of Arrangement for Amalgamation amongst GMR Tuni-Anakapalli Expressways Limited, GMR
Tambaram Tindivanam Expressways Limited (Transferor Companies), GMR Highways Limited {"Transferee Company”) and their respective
Shareholders & Creditors sanctioned vide Order dated August 03, 2022 by Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench {NCLT),
allotment of 6,78,94,200 (Six Crore Seventy Fight Lakh Ninety Four Thousand Two Hundred Only) equity shares of Rs.10/- cach was made to

GMR Generations Assets Limited on September 06, 2022.

Further, with effect from 24-03-2023, 67,894,200 equity shares held by GMR Generation Asset Limited (GGAL) transferred to GMR Pawer

and Urban Infra Limited (GPUIL).

liv) Details of the shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company
As At Blarch 31, 2023 As At Barch 31, 2022
No of Share % No of Share %

Equity Shares
GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited (formerly known as GMR - - 209,968,722 27.08%
Infrastructure Limited)
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited 767,789,941 91.04%| 489,927,019 63.18%

il SEthritiag Private Limited 75,544,769 8.96%| 75,514,769 9.74%
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(v) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates / Promoters

0ut of equily and preference shares issued by the campany, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company and thei

subsidiaries/ assoriates are as helow

GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited (formerly knawn as GMR
Infrastructure limited)

NIL (March 31, 2022: 209,968,722) equity shares of Rs. 10 rach
fully paid up

GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited
767,789,937 (March 31, 2022: 489,927,01%) equity shares of Rs. 10
each fully paid up

GMR Business Process and Services P I td representing and for the
benefit of GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited
1 (March 31, 2022: 1) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up

GMR Corporate Affairs P Ltd representing and for the benefit of
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited
1 (March 31, 2022: 1) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up

GMR Aerostructure Services Ltd representing and for the benefit
of GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited
1 (March 31, 2022: 1) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up

GMR Infra Developers Limited representing and for the benefit of
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited
1 (March 31, 2022: 1) equity shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid up

Mr. Kiran Kumar Grandhi representing and for the benefit of
Dhruvi Securities Private Limited
1(March 31, 2022: 1) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up

Dhruvi Securities Private Limited
75,544,768 (March 31, 2022: 75,544,768) equity shares of Rs. 10
each fully paid up

March 31, 2023
Number

167,739,937 76,778.99
1 0.00

1 0.00

1 0.00

1 0.00

1 0.00
75,544,768 7,554.48

ooRupegsinlacs |

As At
March 31, 2022
Mumber . Rupeesin:acs

209,968,722 20,996.87
489,927,015 48,992.70
1 0.00

1 0.00

1 0.00

1 0.00

1 0.00
75,544,768 7,554.48

15 Other Equity

Rupees in Lacs

Equity component of Preference shares

Opening Balance
Add : Adjustment for the year

(i} | Eguity component of Loans from group companies

Opening Balance
Add : Adjustment for the year

(iii)| Surplus / (Deficit} in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Opening Balance
Add : Profit/ (Loss) for the year

(i) Other Comprehensive Income- Re-measurement (loss)/ gains on
defined benefit plans
Opening Balance

Add : During the year

) A‘S‘A‘l March 3;]., 29%3

As At Blarch 31,2022

16,968.23
16,968.23

15,179.49
= 19,179.49

25,210.87

(12,992.13)
12,218.68

72.74
(2.21) 70.53
48,436.94

16,968.23
= 16,968.23

19,179.49
- 19,179.49

30,641.37

(5,430.56)
25,210.82

52.56
20.18 72.74
61,431.28
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN; U45203MH2006P1C287171

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

Rupees in Lacs

) As At As At
+8. Lanedero Bonowines March31,2023|  March 31, 2022
Secured
Term luans (Indign rupee term loan from bank) 55,621.34 73,558.82
Unsecured
Lgans fram group company 41,052 11 -
L - 96,673.45 73,559.82

{1). Secured Indian rupee term loan from Yes bank of Rs. 62389.45.00 lacs (March 31, 2022: 69538.74 lacs) is secured by First charge over current assets and

movable fixed asiets (present and future) of the Borrower, First Charge on the assets created out of YBL facility to provide minimum cover of 1.0x, Pledge
over 2004 shares of GMR Cnergy Limited (GEL) along with all beneficial/economic voting rights, Pledge over 23.5% Shares of GMR Airport Limited (GAL)
alung wiith all beneficial/economic voting rights to be pledged by GIL, Unconditional and Irrevocable Corporate Guarantee of GMR Infrastreuture limited,

and Margin of 6% of outstanding amount (in form of FD/cash or any other instrument to the satisfaction of YB1). The margin shall be lien marked/pledged
to YBL prior to tirst disbursement.,

The loan caries an interest rate 3.20% p.a (“Spread”) over and above the YBL 1 Year MCLR and is repayable in 14 half yearly installments after the
moratorium period or 12 months.

The company has used the borrowings from banks for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date.

(i1). Secured Indian rupee term lvan from Yes bank of Rs. 11192.41 lacs (March 31, 2022: 12908.80 lacs) is secured by First charge over current assets and
movable fixed assets (present and future) of the Borrower, First Charge on the assets created out of YBL facility to provide minimum cover of 1.0x, Pledge
over 20% shares of GMR Energy Limited (GEL) along with all beneficial/economic voting rights, Pledge over 8% Shares of GEL along with all
beneficial/econumic voting rights and NDU vver 2% shares of GEL [Prior to Disbursment) , Pledge over 23.5% Shares of GMR Airport Limited (GAL) along
with all henchicial/economic voting rights (Prior to Disbursment), Unconditional and Irrevocable Corporate Guarantee of GMR Infrastrcuture Himited
Margin uf 19,14% of outstanding amount (in form of FD/cash or any other instrument to the satisfaction of YBL). The margin shall be lien marked/pledged
ta ¥YB1 prior to first disbursement.

The loan rarries an interest rate 3.10% p.a (“Spread”) over and above the YBL 1 Year MCLR and is repayable in 14 half yearly installments after the
moraturium period or 12 months

The company has used the borrowings from banks for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date

(i} An unsecured loan of Rs 10189.11 laes [as at March 31, 2022: NiL lacs) from GMR Power and Urban Infra Ltd. shall be repayable within 3 yrs from date
of agreement. This loan carries an interest rate of 12.25% p.a.

{iv) An unsecured loan of Rs 30863.00 lacs (as at March 31, 2022: NIL lacs) from GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited shall be repayable within 6 yrs from
date of agreement. This loan carries an interest rate of 7.25% p.a.

4 As At As At
Sl ke March31,2023|  March 31, 2022
Trade Payables
A | Due to micro small and medium enterprise 2,671.51 1,888.06
D redi an micro smé i
B ue to creditors other than micro small and medium 3,508.09 4,558.96
enterprise
6,275.60 6,447.02
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Trade payables Ageing Schedule

As at 31 March 2023

__[-)-utst-an-din-é fo_-r %E\-In.wil.'l_g_);e_riﬂas- frcin égeét;oﬂ:;*yment

More than

Amt Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 3 years Total
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small T T
enterprises - 1,692 01 303.55 481.65 200.29 | 2,677.51
Total vutstanding dues of creditors other than micro I ) ; -
enterprises and small enterprises - 131645 ] 105.00 | 143288 74376 | 3,598.09
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises . - . = = ) -]
lJ\Sputeﬁues of creditors other than micro enterprises S ) i) A
and small enterprises B . R R . .

- 3,008.46 408.55 1,914.54 944.05 | 6,275.60

As at 31 March 2022

) ‘C”)ut_star}d'ing'f_o; fall—év.'_lng ﬁe'r_iﬁs from due date of payment -

More than

Amt Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years Total
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises 419.59 511.67 644.35 262.75 49.71 1,888.06
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 1,117.05 490.84 1,811.63 596.49 542.85 | 4,558.96
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - -
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises - - - - - -

1,536.64 1,002.61 2,455.98 859.24 592.56 6,447.02

Rupees in Lacs

As At As At

18 Short Term Borrowi
ort Tem Berrowings March 31,2023|  March 31, 2022

Secured
(a) Current Maturities of long term debt 17,960.52 8,887.72
Unsecured
(a) Shoit term Loan from related patties 12,199.92 12,391.38

30,160.44 - 21,279.10 |

(i) An unsecured loan of Rs. 5590.00 lacs (as at March 31, 2022: Rs. 5931.45 lacs) from GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Ltd. shall be repayable within 12
months from date of agreement or extendable as per mutual agreement. This loan carries an interest rate of 11% p.a.

{ii) An unsecured loan of Rs. 6219.92.00 lacs (as at March 31, 2022: Rs. 6069.92 lacs) from GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Ltd. shall be repayable within 12
months from date of agreement or extendable as per mutual agreement. This loan carries an interest rate of 10% p.a.

{iii) An unsecured loan of Rs. 290.00 lacs (as at March 31, 2022: Rs 290.00 lacs) from Raxa Security Service Lid. shall be repayable within 12 months from
date of agreement or extendable as per mutual agreement. This loan carries an interest rate of 12.50% p.a.

(iv) Unsecured Short Term loan of Rs.100.00 lacs { March 31, 2022 - Rs.100.00 lacs ) from Raxa Security Services Limited Carries an interest rate

of 10%.
_ Rupees inlacs

" AsAt As At

19 Other Financial Liability . e .

(i) Non Current

(2) Financial guarantee contracts 14.57 20.33
(b) Interest accrued on Inter corporate loans 21.61 -
36.18 20.33

(ii) Current

{a) Interest Accrued & Due on Loans - 1,707.04
(b} Interest accrued an Inter corporate loans and deposi 6,245.43 5,836.21
(c) Financial guarantee contracts 5.75 7.00
(d) Non trade payables 177.19 791.58

6,428.37 8,341.83
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Rupeesin lacs

Breakup of financial liablities category wise

At amortised cost

As At
March 31, 2023

As At
March 31, 2022

20 Provisions

Secured loan from Banks 73,581.87 82,447.54
Loans from related parties 53,252.03 12,351.38
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 6,267.04 7,543.26
Financial guarantes contracts 575 7.00
Trade Payablas 6,275.60 6,447.02
Financial guarantee contracts 14.57 20.33
MNon trade payables 17719 791.58
- o 139,574.05 109,648.10

o “As At As At

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

(i) Non Current

{ii) Current

(a) Provision for Leave benefits 731 6.23

(b} Provision for Other Employee Benefit - 0.07

(c) Other Provision 1,596.22 707.46
1,603.53 713.76

Rupees in Lacs

s A
21 Other current liabilities heii B
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Advances from customers & others 5,688.41 2,982.67

TDS Payable 144.41 99.63

Other Statutory dues 4.56 2.45
5,837.38 3,084.75
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

Rupees in Lacs

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

22 Revenue from operations
(a) Operation and maintenance
(b) Highway Maintenance Fees

23 Other income

(a) Interest Income on Bank Deposit and Others

(b) Management Fee

(c) Interest Income of Financial Assets

(d) Interest Income on Inter Corporate Loans

(e) Profit on sale of Mutual Fund

(f) Pravisions/Liability no longer required written back
(g) Gain on disposal of assets (net)

(h) Other non-operating income

11,451.89 7,711.84
42.00 42.00
11,493.89 7,753.84
109.56 100.45
13.27 2
7,905.93 7,913.81
3,711.02 5,082.52
0.26 5
168.34 253.86
50.16 -
7.10 10.68
11,965.66 13,361.32

W oo
TR A

-y :

o Ani 1

A Hight Pomt v

Iy Pailace Rood J,
Bangalore 1 47

NN

A

N3 gt

st




GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

Rupees in Lacs

24 Operating expenses

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

26 Finance costs

(a) Sub contracting expenses 3,758.16 1,723.28
(b) Operation & maintenance expenses 7,341.52 5,449.90
11,099.68 7,173.18

Year ended Year ended

25 Employee benefit expense March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(a) Salaries, Perquisites & Allowance 56.71 61.60
(b) Contribution to provident and other funds 4.13 3.25
(c) Gratuity expense - 20.18
(d) Staff welfare expenses 0.65 1.01
61.49 86.04

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022
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(a) Interest on debts and borrowings 12,521.69 11,035.87

(b) Interest on intercompany debt and borrowings 1,745.48 1,603.79

(c) Interest Others 4.46 0.07

(d) Other borrowing cost 1,010.75 994.71

15,282.38 13,634.44

Year ended Year ended

27 Depreciation and amortisation expense March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(a) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 2.69 2.03
(b) Amortisation of intangible assets - -

2.69 2.03
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Rupeesin lacs

Year ended Year ended
28 Other expenses March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Rent 5.08 7.98
Rates and taxes 0.81 1.36
Logo Fecs 0.01 0.03
Insurance 0.37 0.23
Fixed assets writeoff 0.00 -
Repairs and maintenance Others 4.40 1.57
Travelling and conveyance 3:317 0.13
Communication costs 0.13 0.15
Securtiy Expenses 2.50 295
Printing and stationery 0.08 0.05
Books & Periodicals - 0.02
Membership 6.00 1.00
Bidding Expenses - 59.39
Legal and professional fees 113.07 101.68
Directors’ sitting fees 575 7.72
Advertising and business promotion 4.00 -
Recruitment expenses 0.02 -
Meeting and seminar 0.54 =
Bank charges 0.40 0.07
Remuneration to auditor 4.00 8.54
Charities and Donations 10.00 89.61
Miscellaneous expenses 13.01 2.23
173.51 284,75

Payment to auditor

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
in Rs. in Rs.
As auditor:
Audit fee 2.50 6.04
Tax audit fee 0.50 1.39
Other services (certification fees) 1.00 1.12
Total 4.00 8.54
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

29 Earning/ (Loss) Per Share

Biesie FRS amounts aee o

ated by diading the profit far the year attributable to equity holders of the parant by the weghted averags number of Futy shares outstanding Jurning the

yoar

Dilited EPS amaunts ara ralrulated by doading the prefit attnbutabla to equity holders of the Company (after adjusting far interest on the sonvert

le prefierenre sharms) by the weighted

averape maomber of [ gunty s untstanding durning the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that wauld be issied an samverion of all the diluteee potential Faoity
hares into bapeoty shares

) ) T T Year ended  Yearended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Profit atinbutable to equnty holders of the Company (Rs in Lacs) (12,992.13) (5,430.56)
Profit attnbutable to equnty holders for basic earnings (Rs in Lacs) (12,992.13) (5,430.56)
Profit attributable to equity holders for diluted earnings (Rs in lacs) [{12,992.13) (5.430.56)
Wueighted Average number of vquity shares for computing Earning Per Share (Basic) 343,334,710 243,344,710
Woeightad averag~ number of Equity shares adjustad for the effact of dilution 843,334,710 843,334,710
Earning P=r Share (Basic) (Rs) (1.54) (0.64)
Earming Per Share (Diluted) (Ra) (1.54) {0.64)
Face value per share (Rs) 10 10

30 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the repotted amounts of revenuss, expenses,
assets and habilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimatas could result in outcomes that
require a matenal adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

31 Capital Commitments
Capital commitments : [stimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed an capital account and not provided for Rs. Nil ( March 2022: Rs. NIL)

32 Contingent Liabilities
Rupeesin Lacs
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Irrevacable Corporate Guarantee in favar of IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited for the benefit of 5,550.00 5.550.00
GMR Chennat Outer Ring Road Pt Ltd { Borrower )

(

A Show Cause notice has been issued by Commissioner of Custom (DRI Matters) to its earlier subsidiary GOHHPL whereby a penalty of Rs 15.91
(i) Jacs has been imposed by the authority, against which company has filed appeal before CESTAT after depositing 7.5% of penalty amount 1.2, Rs
1.19 lacs, which 15 pending as on date for adjudication.

33 Litigation:
Company is having a litigation matter which mainly came on-account of merger of TT and TA in accordance of NCLT order dated 3rd August, 2022,
InTT, subsequent to signing of Concession Agreement, there was change/increase in the Minimum Alternative Tax rates and Service Tax rates and the Fringe Benefit Tax was introduced,
thereby leading to claims of 18.49 crores under Change in Law as per Article 11 of the Concession Agreement dated 09.10.2001.
The Hun'ble Tribunal vide order dated 24th Feb’2018 had upheld the claims of the Company and has awarded %14,51,57,902 plus interest of %6,75,61,842/- at SBI PLR plus 3% upto the date
of the award (total amount 221,27,19,744/-). NHAI was given time till 7th April, 2018 to pay the total amount failing which interest @ 7% p.a. will be payable from 25.02.2018 till the date of
actual payment
Since NHAI did not pay the decretal amount by the time allowed by the Arbitral Tribunal, the Company had filed an execution petition u/s 36 of Arhitration Act, 1996, before Hon'ble Delhi
High Court for recovery of the awarded amount. NHAI had also challenged the Award by filing application u/s 34 of the Arbitration Act, 1996. The Hon'ble Court had clubbed the Execution
Patition of the Company with the application filed by NHAI as the parties and subject of both the cases were similar.
In compliance of the directions of the Hon'ble Delhi High Court, NHAI had deposited an amount of %21.44 cr. on 17.08.2018 with the Registrar of the Cowrt. On applications of the Company,
Delhi High Court vide order dated 20.07.2022 has relsased the amount deposited by NHAI and further vide order dated 28.09.2022 has allowed the application of the Campany for release
of balance amount lying with the court.
Company has received amount of Rs 25.24 lacs (along with interest) on 23.08.2022. Delhi High Court vide order dated 15.09.2022 in an application filed by GMR Highways Ltd. has allowed
the substitution of GMR Tambaram Tindivanam Expressway Limited with GMR Highways Ltd.
Matter 1s now hsted on 13.05.2023 for final arguments.

34 The company did not have any long-lerm contracts including derivative contract for which there were any material foresecable lasses
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

35

36

37

Investment Pledge details e B N e ao S
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Total Shares Held Shares Pledged Total Shares Held Shares Pledged
In favour of In favour of
(InNo.) [ In No.) {InNo.) [in No.)
GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private 2 450,000 3 506667 IDRI Trusteeship 4B ig T IDBI Trusteeship
Limited [Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up) Rt ittt services Ltd SRS o Services Ltd
GMR Chennai Quter Ring Road Private Limited (Equit 1DBI Trusteest 1DBI Trusteeshi
fiig Road RelvaleLitnited (EquTt 14,700,000 5,512,500 [0 Tusteestip 14,700,000 5,512,500 e o
shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up) Services Ltd Services Ltd
GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Privat T : IDBI Trusteeshi
o 1y il < 21,600,000 wizas,71s |0, THustEeshig 21,600,000 7,735,713 rHEERaOR
limited (Preference shares of Rs.100 sach fully paid up) Services L.td Services Ltd
GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited . X 1DBI Trusteeship : IDBI Trusteeship
50,742,720 50,742,720 50,742,720 50,742,720
[ Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully Paid up) Services L td Services Ltd

The above shares have been pledged as per the condition provided in the Rupea Term Loan Agresment.

* Company has pledged Equity shares held by it in GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expressways th.rl.t?dr., in favor of 18I Truis{creshrp Sevices Ltd for securing the term loan of Rs. 282 Croras
availed by GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expressways Pvt. Ltd. its subsidiary company. Company has created the charge through Deed of Hypothecation dated October 05 2015 and the charge is
registered with Registrar of Companies Mumbai vide Charge Certificate No. 10610945.

The Company has made an investment of Rs. 27407.31 lacs (March 31 2022: Rs. 27407.31 lacs) [including loans of Rs.7753.00 lacs (March 31 2022: Rs. 7753.00 lacs) share application
money pending allotment of Rs. NIL (March 31 2022: NIL) and investment in equity / preference shares of Rs. 19654 31 lacs {March 31 2022: Rs. 19654 31 lacs) made by the Company and
its subsidaries] in GMR Ambala Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited (‘GACEPL’) an associate of the Company. GACEPL has been incurring losses since the commencement of commercial
operations. The management balivas that thase losses are due to loss of revenue arising as a result of divesrion of partial traffic on prallel roads. The matter is currently under arbitration
however based on management's internal assessment and a legal opinion the management of GACEPL is confident that it will be able to claim compensation from relevant authorities for
the loss it has suffered due to such diverion of traffic and accordingly the investment in GACEPL has been carried at cost.

The Arbitral Tribunal vide order dated 26.08.2020 had pranounced the Award whereby all the claims of GMR were rejected by two members of the AT in both the cases. However, Mr.
Justice (Retd. Deepak Verma by way of separate award has awarded %1,003 cr. plus Interest to the Company. The Interim stay granted against the recovery of Negative Grant has also been
vacated.

Subsequently, NHAI vide letter dated 03.09.2020 has asked the Company to deposit the amaount along with the interest. NHAI has alsa written to Central Bank of India, Escrow Bank to remit
the amount.

Aggrieved by rejection of all of its claims, GMR had filed two applications each in both Punjab and Haryana matters before Delhi High Court — one u/s 34 of Arbitration Act, 1996, seeking
setting aside of the award of Arbitral Tribunal and another application u/s 9 of Arbitration Act, 1896, seeking stay on the letters of NHAI demanding payment of the instalments of Negativa
Grant along with interest. GMR had also filed an application under section 36 of Arbitration Act, 1996, for stay of operation of the Award tll the time its challenge u/s 34 is decided.

The Court vide its order dated 24.09.2020 had admitted the challenge to Award and issued notice in section 34 application but the other two applications filed u/s 9 and 36 were rejected.

Delhi High Court vide order dated 26.09.2022, had set aside the award dated 26.08.2020 and the entire dispute is to be referred to arbitration once again for which paities are at libarty to
re-initiate arbitral proceedings as per the contiactual covenants. All issues of fact and law would remain upen to be agitated by GMR, NHAI and States of Haryana and Punjab in the de-novo
arbitral proceedings. GMR has filed an appeal u/s 37 of the Arhitration Act and is listed on 18.05.2023.

NHAl and GoHR have also filed appeals u/s 37 of the Arbitration Act. Arguments by NHAI, GoHR and GMR have been concluded. On 11.04.2023, arguments are completed and the
judgement is reserved for orders. Against dismissal of its application u/s 9 {for interim protection from recovery of Negative Grant) as well as section 36 applications (for stay of operation of
Award) in appeal before Division Bench of Delhi High Court, GMR has filed 4 5LP's both in Haryana and Punjab matters before the Hon'ble Supreme Court. All SLPs were listad on 18.11.2020
before the Bench of Hon'ble Chief Justice of India when the Court directed that SLPs of GMR be listad with 3 other SLPs pending in the Court on the same issue. However, in view of award
being set aside, these SLPs became infructuous and were dismissed as withdrawn on 16.01.2023.

The Company has made an investment of Rs. 65037.00 lacs (March 31 2022: Rs. 65037.00 lacs) [including loans of Rs.43192.00 lacs (March 31 2022: Rs. 43192.00 lacs) share application
money pending allotment of Rs. NIL {March 31 2022: NIL) and investment in equity / preference shares of Rs. 21845,00 lacs (March 31 2022: Rs. 21845.00 lacs) made by the Company and
its subsidiaries] in GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited (‘GHVEPL') an subsidiary of the Company. GHVEPL has been incurring losses since the commencement of
commercial operations. These losses are primarily due to loss of revenue arising as a result of drop in commaercial traffic due to bifurcation of state of Andhra Pradesh and ban on sand
mining in the region. These events constitutes a Change in Law as per the Cancession Agreement and same has been agreed by NHAI and has also agreed to pay compensation, however
there was no agreement on the quantification of the claim amount. GHVEPL has invoked Arbitration and has filed a claim of Rs. 167600.00 lacs (Based on values upto March 31, 2020)
before the Tribunal. Tribunal vide its order dated March 31, 2020 has pranounced the award unanimously, upholding GHVEPL's contention that bifurcation of state of Andhra Pradesh and
ban on sand mining in the region constitutes Change in Law event and GHVEPL is entitled for compensation far the loss of revenue arising as a result of drop in commercial vehicles.
However, on the quantum of the claim amount, majority of the Tribunal members has directed NHAI to constitute a committee for determining the claim amount based on data / record
available with GHVEPL and NHAI.

Company had filed two applications u/s 34 (challange to Award to limited ground that NHAI cannot be judge of its own cause] and u/s 9 of the Arbitration Act [seeking stay an recovery of
Negative Grant till claims are quantified]. NHAI also filed its challenge u/s 34 of the Arbitration Act to the arbitration award.

Delhi High Court vide order dated 4.08.2020 had upheld the Change in Law and struck down the directions of constitution of Committee by NHAI and instzad had appointed HMJ D K. Jain,
retired judge of Supreme Court to quantify the claims of GMR.

Justice D.K. Jain has submitted his report on 28.02.2022 with Delhi High Court whereby he has awarded a sum of Rs. 1672 20 cr. uptil 31.03.2020. Interest on the claimed amount in terms
of clause 47.5 of Concession Agreement has also been allowed. For claims for the year 2020-2021 and onwards, the same principle would be applicable.

In the hearing held on 03.03.2022, the report submittad by Justice D.K. Jain was taken on recard. In view of the pendency of appeal ufs 37 befare Division Bench, the matter is now listed on
07.07.2023. for further proceedings.
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GMR Highways limited

CIN:

U45203MH2006PLC287171

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
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On May 8, 2020, GHVLPL has recewved a notice from NHAL12stricung the concession peniod to 15 years pursuant to clause 3.2.2. of the Concession Agreement by stating that NHAI 15
satisfied that G-laning of the project is not required. GHVEPL has sought mat=ri 1 on record from MHALand has further ohtamed legal opininn.

De
Bhosale (former Chief Justice of Allahabad High Court) as 1ts numinee Arbitrstor wide letter dated 6th April, 2021 and NHAI has appointed Mr. Samirendra Chatterjez, IAS (Retd) as its
nominee arbitrator and hath the arbitrators have apprinted ustice My, B Banumath) as the Brecding Arbitrator,

GHVEFL has filed an appheation ufs 17 of the Artutration Act, 1926 befare Trbunal for stay of aperation of NHAIs [etter dated 08 05.2020 till pendency of current arhitration procesdings
Vide interim order dated 29.09.2021, the Han'ble Tribunal has stayed the letter dated 03.05.2020.

0On 12.10.2022, the Counsel for claimant and the Reipondent eoncluded ther subimizsion on the Sec 17 application. By order dated 07.11.20232, the AT has allowed the application and
directed continuation of interin order dated U3.09.2022 until the final Award.

The examination-in-chief and cruss-examination of (CW-1 was recurded and concluded on 02.12.2022. Further, cross examination of CW-2 was concluded un 21.04.2023. The matter is now
listed on 20.07.2023,21.07.2023 and 22.07 2023 for complntion of cross examination of witnessos

Aggrivved by the action of NHAL the Company haw mvoked arbitration under Depute Resolution mechamsm prescibed under the Concession Agreement by appomting Mi Just

Leases
The Company has entered into certain cancellable operating lease agreements for office premises.
The lease rentals paid during the period and the maximum obligation on the long term cancellable operating lease payable are as follows:

Rupees in lacs
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Lease rentals under cancellable and non-cancellablu leases 5.08 7.98

Based on information available with the Company, suppliers who are registered as micro, small or medium enterprises under 'The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developmeant Act,
2006" as at Mil{s}tdﬁ’ 23 has been classified under note na. 17A.

Pruuisiur;it‘; acs th;F?tﬁ—d‘m books on account of interest acerued and remaining unclaimed.
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GMR Highways limited
CIN: U45204MH2006P1LC287171
Notes farming port of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31,2023

40 Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans:
Valuation of Employcee Benefit has been done for the period ended March 31 2023 as per INDAS 19 - Employac Benefits 1ssued by the Institute af Charterod Arcauntants af Inihia

(a) Defined Contribution Plans
Contributions paid / payable to defined cantribution plans comprising of provident fund, pension fund, superannuation fund ete., in aceordancs with t
recognised as expenses during the year when the centributions to the respective funds are due.

apphcabkle laws and repulations are

Rupees in lacs

Particulars Year ended Year ended

s P - - _March31,2023 = March 31, 2022
Contribution to provident fund 2.65 2.40
{'nnmbntm-:&; superannuation fund - R ) é-‘:

B 2.94 3]

{b) Defined Bencfit Plans
The Company has defined benefit plan, namely gratuity. As per scheme, an employes who has completed five years or mare of service gets gratuity equivalents to 15 ilays salary {last drawn
salary) for each completed year of service.

The following table summarises tha components of net expense recognised In the income statement and amaounts recognised in the balance sheet fur gratuity.

Net Benefit Expenses

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss Rupeesinlacs  Rupeesinlacs
Current service cost 0.86 0.75
Past Service Cost - plan amendments -
Interest cost an benefit obligation 17.19) (3.97)
Expected raturn on plan assets - -
Total (6.33) (3.22)
Camponents of defined benefit costs recognised in ather comprehensive income
Actuarial (gains) / loss due to DBO experience 0.25 034
Actuarial (gains) / loss due to DBO assumption changes (0.09) (0.10)
Return on Plan assets (greater)/less than discount rate 2.05 (20.42)
Total 2.21 (20.18)
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Benefit Asset/ [Liability)

Definad benefit obligation (4.61) [31.2R)
Fair value of plan assets 139.04 llﬂ}i
Benefit Asset/ (Liabili 134.43 87.80

iz 8780

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit abligation:

Opening defined benefit obligation 31.28 30.14
Interest cost 0.24 0.15

Current service cost 0.86 0.7%
Past Service Cost - plan amendments #
Benefits Paid %

Net actuarial{gain)/loss recognised in year 0.16 0.24
Acguisition adjustment (27.92) -
Closing defined benefit obligation 4.61 el
Changes in the fair value of plan assets: Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening fair value of plan assets 115.08 113.8%
Acquisition adjustment 1458 {18.35)
Interest Income on Plan Assets 742 412
Contributions by employer = *
Expected return {2.05) 20.42
Benefits paid - e
Closing fair value of plan assets 139.04 119.08
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: UA5203MH2006PLC287171
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

Year ended
_ March 31, 2022

Year ended
) __March 31,2023

The major categories of nlan assets as a percentage of total
Insurer managed funds 10D0% T

The principal assumptions used in determining pension and pust-umployment benefit obligations fur the Company’s plans are shown below:

Discount rate

7304 7.10%

Future salary increases 6 OU% 6.00"%
Mortality table used Irndian AlLured lives Indian Assursd Lives
Mortality (2006-08) Mortahly (2006-03)

Ult. ult,

Withdrawal Rate 5.00%7% 5.00%

The estimates of future salaty increases considered in the actuanal valuation take into account inflation, semonty, promotion and other relevant factars such as supply and demand in the
employment market

Contributions expected to be made by the Company during the next year is Rs. NIL (previous yoar R NIL)

Risk Faced by Company:

The Gratuity scheme is a final salary Defined Benefit Plan that provides for a lump sum payment madue un exit either by way of retirement, death, disability ar voluntary withdrawal. The
benefits are defined on the basis of final salaiy and the period of service and paid as lump sum at exit. The Plan design means the risks commonly affecting the liabilities and the financial
results are expected to be:

Interest rate risk : The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tand to increase

Salary Inflation risk : Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benafit obligation

Demographic risk : This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include martality, withdrawal, dissbility and retirement. The effect of these
decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not straight forward and depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria. It is important not to overstate
withdrawals because in the financial analysis tha retirement benefit of a short caresr employes typically costs loss per year as compared to a long service employee.

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the definad abligation are discount rate, expected salary increasa and mortality. The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

Sensitivity Analysis Rupeesin lacs
March 31, 2023
Discount rate Future salary increases Withdrawal Rate
Sensitivity Level +1% -1% k1% -1% +1% 1%
Amountin INR
(0.41) 0.46 0.46

Impact on defined benefit obligation (0.41) 0.02 (0.03)
March 31, 2022
Discount rate Future salary increases Withdrawal Rate
Sensitivity Level +1% -1% I -1% +1% -1%
Amount in INR
(0.31) 0.36 0.36

Impact on defined benefit obligation (0.32) 0.00 (0.01)

Maturity Plan of defined benefit obligation: Rupees in lacs

Within 1 year 0.23
1-2 year 0.41
2-3 year 047
3-4 year 053
4-5 year 0.60
5-10 year 3:95"
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GMR Highways limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

41 List of Related parties and Transactions / Qutstanding Balances:

a) Name of Related Parties and description of relationship:

Enterprises  that control the Company
significant influence

J/ excercie

GMR Airport |J|fla:tr ucture Limited (GIL) (Holding Company till 31.12.2021 as per NCLT
Order)

GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited (GPUIL) (Holding Company w.e.f 31.12.2021 as per
NCLT Order)

GMR Enterprises Pyt Ltd. {GEPL) (the Parent Company)

Subsidiary Companies of the 1epatting enterprise

GMR Parhanpalll Fxpressways Ltd (GPEL)

GMR Ambala-t handigarh Fxpressways Private Limited (GACE)
GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Exprassways Private Limited (GHVEPL)
GMR Chennal Quter Ring Road Private Limited (GCORRPL)

Fellow Subsidiarias [ Associates

Key Management Personnel

GNIR Airport Develapers Limitad (GADL)

GNIR Infrastructure Limited (GIL) Fellow Subsidiary Company w.e.f 01.01.2022 as per
NCLT Order)

GMR Energy Ltd (GEL)

GIMR Generation Assets Limited ( GGAL)[ formerly known as GMR Renewable Energy
GMR Airports Limited {GAL)

GMR Corporate Affairs Limited (GCAL)

GNR Krishnagin SIR Limited (GKSIR)

GMR SEZ AND PORT HOLDING LIMITED (GSPHL)

Marmitha Real Estate Private Limited (NREPL)

GMR Hyderabad International Airport Ltd (GHIAL)

Delhi Internation Airport Limited

Raxa Security Services Ltd

Dhruvi Securities Pyt Ltd.(DSPL)

Mr. BV N Rau, Director

Mr. O.Bangaru Raju Managing Director

Mr Madhva B. Terdal , Directar

Mr. K. Parameswara Rao, Independent Director (till 07 Sep.2022)
Mr. Mohan Rao Murthy

Mrs. Sridevi Venisheety, Woman Director

Mr 5. Rajagopal, Independent Director
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

b) Summary of transactions with

above related parties are as follows:

Rupees in Lars

Name of Entity Particulars For the Year For the Year
ended ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Transaction with Enterprises that control the Company / exercise significant influence - .
GPUN T intereat Expenses on Unsecured Loan Taken T T T aisar o
Unsecured Loan Refunded to GPUIL 4,605 10 13,851 41
Unsecured Long Term Loan taken from GPUIL 14, .21 1,720.70
Managements Support Services-Expense 5431 8,57
Purchased of Fixed Assets 5.64
Wark Contract Services Provided to GPUIL 1,401 10
Short Term Loan Given to GPUIL (Corporate) 1.872.00 29,313.68
Short Tarm Loan Refund by GPUIL (Corporate) 12.902 13 18,283.5%
Shoit Term Loan Given to GPUIL (EPC) 41479 40.91
Interest Income on Loan given (GPUIL EPC) 13225 106.41
Interest Income on Loan given (GPUIL Corp) 43334 873 836
GIL Managements Support Services-Expense - 53.95
Interest Expenses on Unsecured Loan Taken 24.01 “
Unsecured Long Term Loan taken from GIL 30,863.00 -
GEPL Logo Fees and Trade Mark 0.01 0.03
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

Transaction with Subsidiaries

_Rupeesin lacs |

GACEPL Charges for Repair & Maintenance Work- Income

23736 17737
Charpes for Major Maintenance Work- Incomu 1,377.44 185.95
Interest on Financial Assets of Preference Share Investment 125.14 1,395.11
Interest income on Shart Term Loan Given (G1T / GTA) 556.07 556.07
Advance received / (Adjusted} on account of R & h/ COS / MMR Work (1.10) e
Interest Income on finanical asset part of Loan given 580.34 524.33
GPEL Charges for Repair & Maintenance Work- Income 313.583 287.77
Charges for Major Maintenance Work- Income 1,035.35 1,131.30
Charges for COS Work- Income 2,606.49 1.283.03
Advance received / (Adjusted) on account of R & M/ COS / MMR Work (84.88) (30.56)
Unsecured Loan Refunded to GPEL 34146 C
Unsecured Loan taken from GPEL 150.00 =
Interest on Unsecured Laan 1,251_'.'_1_5 1,259.45
GCORRPL Interest on Financial Assets of Preference Share [nvestment 467.84 422.69
Interest on Unsecured Loan Given 367.46 368.27
Charges for Repair & Maintenance Work - Income 292.55 258,32
Charges for Major Maintenance Wark - Income - 119.54
Charges for COS Work - Incume 124.30 176.84
Advance received / (Adjusted) on account of R&M/ CQOS / MMR Work 322.51 376.52
Income for Financial Guarantee given 7.00 8.39
Sub Debts Given to CORR 1,216.78 799.92
Sub Debts Refund by CORR 4,452 .09 440.00
GHVEPL Interest on Financial Assets of Preference Share Investmant 1,789.07 1,616.40
Interest Income on Loan given 3,401.88 3,073.55
Charges for Repair & Maintenance - Income 591.39 1,174.64
Charges for Major Maintennace Work - Income 3,472.47 2,673.82
Charges for COS Work - Income 42.01 275.27
Advance received / (Adjusted) on account of R&M/ COS / MMR Work (88.31) 138.03

Transaction with Fellow Subsidiaries / Associates/Joint Ventures Rupees in Lacs

GIL - SIL IV Unsecured Shoit Term Lean Given 300.00 300.00
Unsecured Loan Refunded by GIL SIL 487.00
Interest Income on Loan given 37.94 34.94
KSEZ Unsecured Loan Given to KSEZ - -
Unsecurad Loan Refunded by KSEZ - 26,666.59
Investment / (Sold) in CCDs issued by KSEZ - (25,836.15)
Namitha Real Estate Unsecured Loan Given 72.89 -
Interest Income on Loan given 21.06 12.25
GKSIR Unsecured Loan Given to KSIR - 1,365.41
Interest income on Financial asset (GTT) 1,262.79
Unsecured Loan Refunded by KSIR 100.00 14,377.18
Investment in CCDs of GKSIR {loan converted) 23,460.00
Interest Income an CCDs 0.10
Interest Income on Loan given 1,258.95 2,802.30
GSPHL Unsecured Loan Given 848.98 235.00
Unsecured Loan Refunded by GSPHL 445.00 150.00
Investment in CCDs of GSPHL {loan converted) 12,600.00
Interest Income on CCDs 0.06
Interest Income an Loan given 733.98 79340
GHIAL PMC fe= for implemenation of Fare Collectiun Systm - Income 1327 -]
DIAL Suppaort services for vehicle running [Diesel service) 2.95
Grandhi Enterprises Pvt Ltd Mumbai Office Rental charges - 316
Raxa Security Services Ltd Unsecured Loan Taken - -
Security Service Charges 2.50 295
Interest Expenses on Loan Taken 46.25 46.25
Enterprise where Key Management Personnel and their relative exercis significant influence R
G. Varalakshmi Vizag Guest House Rental charges o 5.08 4.82
GVF Donation E 40.91
GFFT Refund of Deposit by GFFT 54.21 -
Rent - 5

* Renpl\:in‘ié!\}éllni“ Bi'ﬂf;ﬁiss are not considered in the above statement.
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: Ua5203MH2006PLC287171
7Nn£qs_lor1_1_\_1‘_r3g_p._'nt_9_f Financial Statements for the Year ended Mareh 31,2023

Transaction with Key Management Personnel

Details of Key Managerial

Remuneration

Short-term
employee benefits

Personnel Post employment

benefits

Other long-term
employee benefits

Termination
benefits

Sitting Fee

Others

plipess iniLacs

Outstanding
loans/advances

receivables

Mr. K. Parameswara Rao

i '.\.\1‘\“3 1 1[" 5
” N

4502
Hight Point 1v
15, Malace Rong,
=\ Banyalore. 1

(]

= - 1.00 - =
(0.95)
Ms. Kavitha Gudapati - - - -
{0.30)
Mr. 5. Rajagopal - - - - 2.05 -
(1.25)
Mr. Mohan Rav Murthy - - - # 1.05
Mr. B.L. Gupta ¢ i g = B . i
- 2 . (2.60) « -
Mr. 5.1.5 Ahmed - - - - - -
s . - : (1.35) :
Mr. K. A, Surmayajulu - - - - - -
d . : (1.25) - -
Rupees in lars
Name of Entity Particulars As At As At
o March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Closing Balances with Enterprises that control the Company / excrcise significant influence
GPUIL Financial Liablity of Sub Debt = -
Equity portian of Sub Debt 23,865.48 23,865.48
Equity portion of Prefercnce Shares 22,583.58 22,583.58
Unsecured Long Term Loan Taken 10,189.11
Interest Payable on Unsecured Loan 417.86 -
Trade and Other Payables 43.66 23.74
Trade and Other Payables (Provision) 23.20 -
Trade Receivablz -
Advance received on account of Waork Contract Services 28.02
Unbilled Revanue fur of Work Contract Services 1,401.00
Short Term Loan Given (GPUIL EPC) 1,519.65 1,104.91
Short Term Loan Given (GPUIL Carporate) = 11,030.13
Interest Receivable (GIL EPC) 34380 216.98
Interest Receivable (GIL Corporate) - 800.20 &
Retention Money Payable Ta25 16.25
GIL Trade and Other Payables = 51.53
Interest Accived on Unsecured Loan (Long Term) 2161
Unsecured Long Term Loan Taken 30,863.00
GEPL, Trade and Other Payables - 0.03
Trade and Other Payables (Pravision) 0.01 -
Closing Balances with Subsidiaries
GACEPL Investment in Equity share capital - {Other than trade) 5,074.27 5,074.27
Financial Assets of Investment in Prefarenac Shares - 14,454.30
Equity Partion of Investment in Preferenec Shares 24,553.07 9.973.03
Interest Receivable on Long term loan given 3,582.41 3,040.62
Short term loan given - 6,163.38
Long term loan given 6,163.38 ¢
Financials Assets portion of Loan Given 6,013.00 5,432.66
Equity portion of Loan Given 5,641.62 5,641.62
Advance received on account of R&M/ COS / MMR Wark 0.04 -
Unbilled Revenue for O&M/COS/MMR/IT related 51:18
Trade and Other Receivables 10,156.02 3,993.25
CORR Investment in Equity share capital - {Other than trade) 1,470.00 1,470.00
Equity Portion of Sub Debts Given 547157 547.57
Assets Portion of Sub Debts given - 3,235.31
Financial Assets of Investment in Preferenec Shares 4,847.37 4,379.52
Equity portion of Preference Shares Investment 6,011.67 6,011.67
Investment as Financial Guarantee given 7930 79.39
Interest Receivable - 461.16
Advance received on account of R&M/ COS / MMR Work 1,751.06 1,428.55
Unbilled Revenue for Q&M/COS/MMR/IT related 14215
Trade and Other Recelvables 14.22 16.48
GHVEPL Financials Assets portion of Loan Given 35,247.20 31,845.32
Financial Assets of short term loan given 8,799.00 8,799.00
Equity portion of Loan Given 28,255.48 28,255.49
Investment in Equity share capital - (Other than trade) 245.00 245.00
Unbilled Revenue for O&M/COS/MMR/IT related 547.11
Trade and Other Receivables 814.23 1,258.29
Retention Money Receivable 51.12 53.02
Equity Portion of Investment in Preferenec Shares 16,349.31 16,345.31
Advance raceived on account of Routine Maintennace Fee / MMR Work 67.66 155.97
Financial Assets of Investment in Preferenec Shares 18,536.74 16,747.67




GMR Highways limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLL287171
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023
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GPEL Financial Liablity portion of Security Deposit Received
Investment in Equnty share capital - {Other than trade) 13,533 00 23 00
Fruity portion of Security Deposit Recerved 1158 11 %53
Unsecred Loan Taken 11,300.92 12,001.38
Interest payable on Unsecured Loan 547674 1639 56
Advance received on account of Routine Maintennace Fee / BAMR Wark 1,312°82 1,327.01
Unbhill=d Revenus for O&M/COS/MMR/IT related 434.08
Trade and Other Rezeivables 1,244 98 | L1z
Closing Balances with Fellow Subsidiaries/ Associates/Joint Ventures e
Dhruvi Equity portion of Preference Shares e _ o Lo72a7 . 1.87247
GHIAL Trade and Other Payablas 10.66 24.99
GMR Energy Limited Equity Mortion of Subordinate Debt i 2.676.88 2.676.86
MNamitha Real Estate Interest receivable 20.01 72.74
Financials Assets portion of Loan Given 172.89 100 00
GMR Sez and Port Holding Interest recevable 894.75
Investment in CCDs 12,600.00
Interest receivable on CCDs 0.05
Short Term Loan Given - 9,834.02
Lung Term Loan Given o s e o Jrras _1,625.39]
DIAL Trade and Other Payables ) 11281 47123
GGAL Interest Payable 229.14 22914
Kricshnagiri SIR Ltd Interest receivable - 1,442.61
Financial asset part of long Term Loan Given e 18,153.18
Investment in CCDs 23,460.00
Interest receivable on CCDs 0.09
Equity Component of Loan Given 1,892.57 4,273.37
Long Term Loan Given 100 00
Raxa Security Services Ltd Unsecred Loan Taken 390.00 390.00
interest payable on Unsecured Loan 121.69 89.28
Security/Other Deposit Recoverable 12.12
Trade and Other Payables [Provision) | o280 _...280
GIL-SIL IV Interest receivable 69.49 | LT3
Shott Term Loan Given 50.00 7
| Long Term Loan Given D P 6300 _
GFET Security Deposit Receivable .
Other Payable =
Grandhi Varalakshmi Trade and Other Payables (Provision) Lt e B

Commitments with related pmtms As at period ended March 31, 2023, thara is no commitment outstanding with any of the rr‘mted pames

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The transaction from related parties are made an terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the yeai-and are unsecured and settlement
occurs in cash. Guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables are disclosed in Note 32. Tor the period ended 31 December 2021, Impairment on Money
receivable from related parties does not arise. This assassment is undertaken each financial year through cxamining the financial position of the related parly and the market in which the
related parly operates.

Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, Preference Share, loan fram related paities and all ather equity reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial rovenants To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company includes within net debt, external

borrowings.

Rupees in lacs

Particulars At 31 March 2023 At 31 March 2022
Borrowings- External 73,581.87 85,032.82
Borrowings- Related party 59,519.06 17,349.36
Net debts 133,100.93 102,382.17|
Capital Compaonents

Share Capital 84,333.47 77.544.05
Share Capital pending issuance - 6,789.42
Other Equity 48,426.94 61,431.23
Total Capital 132,770.41 145,764.75
Capital and net debt 265,871.33 248,146.92
Gearing ratio (%) 50.06% 41.26%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the intarast-bearing loans
and berrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been

no breaches in tha financial covenants of any interest-hearing loans and borrowing in the current period
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objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,
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Financial Instrument by Category

Particulars

Assets

" At31 March 2023

Rupcesin lacs

At FVTPL

Ccost |

. FaicValie

Rupeesin lacs

As at March 31,2022
At Amortised Cost -l

AtFVIPL

Cost

Fair Value

Equity pattion of compound financial instruments 46,914.05 - 32,334.01 - =
Investment in related party loans 37,337 - 39,718.05 5 &
Investment in financial guzrantees 7939 - 79.39 J #
Investment in preference shares issued to related partie 23,381,111 - 35,582.09 - =
Loans to Related parties 62,460.12 E 101,881.43 - #
Cash & Cash Equivalent 30,135.50 - 85.51 = =
Trad= Reccivables 2,126.88 - 2,820.84 - *
Other Financial Assets 17.870.22 . o 22,717.29 - =
Total 220,307.53 - o 235,218.62 - e
Liabilities

Loans from related parties 53,7252.03 - 12,391.38 - -
Loan from extarnal parties 73,581.87 - §2,447.54 - =
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 6,267.04 - 7,543.26 - #
Financial guarantee contracts 5.75 - 7.00 - -
Trade Payables 6,275.60 ks 6,447.02 s =
Financial guarantee contracts 1457 - 20.33 - -
Non trade payables 17719 e 791.58

Total 139,574.05 P 109,648.10 % y

Exceptional items
Break-up of Exceptional ltem is as under:

Rupees in lacs

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 AzatMarchat.
2022
Gain / (Loss) on Receivables of CCDs (10,083.67) (5.659.33)
Total (10,083.67)] (5,659.33)
Fair values

The carrying amount of all financial assets and liabilities {except for those instrumeants cained at fair value} appearing in the financial statements is reasonable approximation of fair values.

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets, borrowings, trade and other payables approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term

maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a

forced ar liguidation sale.

Fair Value Hierarchy

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets far identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 ~ Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are obseivahle for the asset or lizbility, vither directly (i.c. as prices) or indiractly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and lizbilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2021

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

Fair Value measurement at end of the repoiting period/year

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Assets

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2021:

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022

Level 1

Level 2

Fair Value measurement at end of the reporting gg[igﬂu‘year 3

Level 3

Assets

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations. The
Company's principal financial assets is cash and cash equivalents, Investmeant and other bank balance

The Company's exposed to market risk, eredit risk and liquidity risk. The company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s senior management is
supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framewerk for the Company. The financial risk committee provides
assurance to the company's senior management that the company's financial risk activitias are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified,
measured and managed in accordance with the company's policies and risk objectives. The Board uf Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing sach of these risks, which are

summarised below
WY ¢

/&




GMR Highways Limited

CIN: U4AS20 3MH2006PLC287171
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

Market risk

Market nisk is the vsk that the fare valoe of fubire

cach flows of o fimanaial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk camprises thres types of rsk: mterest
wic il in truments atfected by market risk include leans and borrowings and Investment measured at FYTPL

rate risk, curcency risk aond comumoddy risk

Tha sensitivity analyses in the follswing sections relate ta the posivon as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022
The sensitivity analyscs have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to fluating interest rates of the debt are all constant

The analyses exclide the impact af mevements in motket vanahlas on: the carrying values of gratuity and ather post-retiremant abl

ations; pravisions. The analysis for tha contingent
consideration liability 15 provided in Note 37

The following assumptions have been made in calrulating the sansitivity analyses:

The sensitivity of the relevant profit o loss item 1, the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial habilities held at March 31,
2023 and March 31, 2022,

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash tlows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk af
changes in market interest rates relates primanly to the Company's lung-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company's policy is ta manage its interest cost using only interest freef fixed rate debts from related paities.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity te a reasonably pussible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting.
With all other variables held constant. the Company’s profit befare tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Increase/ decrease Effect on profit
in basis points before tax

March 31, 2023 Rupees in lacs
INR +50 (481.96)
INR -50 481.96
March 31, 2022
INR +50 (512.99)
INR -50 512.99

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparly will not maet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. With respect to credit risk arising from
other financial assets of the Company's, which comprise Cash and cash equivalents, loans and advances and investment, the Company's exposure to credit risk arises from default of the
counterparty, with maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instrument.

The Carrying value of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk, The maximum exposure to credit risk was Rs. 276805.33 lacs and Rs. 255656.43 lacs as at March 31,2023 and
March 31,2072 respectively, being the total carrying value of trade receivable, balance with bank, bank deposits, investments and other financial assets.

Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a reasonable price. The Company's treasury department is rasponsible for

liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risk are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Company's net
liquidity position through olling furecast on the basis of expected cash flows.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the cumpany's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Rupeesin lacs

On Demand Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-5 years Mare than 5 Years Total
Year ended
March 31, 2023
Term Loan from Bank — 18,884.18 28,326.26 28,326.26 - - 75,536.71
Loan from Related parties 18,445.35 10,185.11 30,834.61 59,519.07
Trade payables 6,275.60 6,275.60
Other financial liabilities 177.19 177.19
43,782.32 28,326.26 38,515.38 30,884.61 - 14150857
On Demand Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-5 years Mare than 5 Years Tatal
Year ended
March 31, 2022
Term Loan from Bank 3,017.43 9,442.09 18,834.18 28,326.26 28,326.26 = 87,996.23
Loan from Related parties 16,705.08 = 16,705.08
Trade payables 6,447.02 6.447.02
Other financial liabilities 791.58 781.58
3,017.43 33,385.77 18,884.18 28,326.26 28,326.26 - 111,939.91

Excessive risk concentration
The Company needs to assess the risks in relation to excessive risk concentration and the measures adopted by the Company to mitigate such risks.
Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have economic features that waould cause

their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the company's
performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the company's policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a diversified portfalio. Identified
concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly. Selective hedging is used within the company to manage risk concentrations at both the relationship and industry
levels.
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Recent accounting pronouncements
Ministry of Carporate Affairs [ "MCA”) notfies new standards or amendments ta the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to ume
On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 3023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose their mataiial accounting palicies rather than their significant accounting policies and
include carrespanding amendments to IND AS 107 and IND AS 34. The effactive date for adoption of this amendment 15 annual penods begimming an ar after Apnl 1, 2023. The Company has
evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the financial statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Fstimates and Errors - This amendmant has introduced a defimition of “accaunting estumates’ and inclded amendments to Ind AS 8
ta help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amandmaent 15 annaal perieds beginning on or after
April 1, 2023, The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statemants.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption o that it dowss not apply to transactians that give rse to cqual and offsetting
tempuorary differences, Also there is corresponding amendment to IND AS 101. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual pariods beginning on or after April 1, 2023, The
Company has cvaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statement.

Additional disclosure pursuant to schedule 1l of Companies Act 2013
There is no proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami propertly under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1388 (45 of 1338) and the
rules made thereunder.

The Company does not have any transactions/ balances with companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 to the best of knowledge of Company's management.

The Company does nat have any such transaction which is not recorded in books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments (such
as, search or survey or any ather relevant provisions) under Income Tax Act, 1961

The Company has not traded or invested funds in Crypto currency of Virtual currency.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) te any ather person(s) or entity{ies), including
foreign entities (Intermediaiies) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall

(1) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persans or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by ar on behalf of the Company (Ulumate Benaficiaiies) or

(il) provide any guarantes, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities(Funding Party) with the understating (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that
the Company shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party [Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(i1} provide any guarantes, szcurity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company has used borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance sheet date

The Company has not declared wilful defaulter by any bank of financial institution of other lender.

The quarterly return/ statement of current assets filed by the Company with bank and financial institutions in relation to secured borrowings wherever applicable are in agreement with
boaks of accounts.

The Company has not granted any Loans or Advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013,) either severally
ar jointly with any other person, that are:

{a) repayable an demand or

(b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment
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GMR Highways Limited
CIN: U45203MH2006PLC287171
Notes farming part of Financial Statements for the Year ended March 31, 2023

51 Segment Reporting
The Company in only in one segment to be reported and hence, the reporting under the provisions of INDAS 108 does not arise.

52 Previous year's figures have been regrouped where necessary to confirm to corrent year’, dassification

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our Report of even date for and on behalf of
For Girish Murthy & Kumar GMR Highways Limited
Firm registration number: 09345
Chartered Accountants
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Vikas Bansal Parpfijekl Singh
Chief Financial Officer Compgny Secretary

Place: New Delhi
Date: 29th April 2023




